
Date Published:8 September 2020     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee

Wednesday 16 September 2020 at 1.30 pm

Please note that this meeting will be held remotely and can be
viewed on the County Council website at
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Chair

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the committee are invited to declare any pecuniary or 
personal interests relating to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting on 2 July 2020.

Chair

4  WORK PLAN (Pages 9 - 10)

To review the committee work plan and suggest items for consideration at 
future meetings.

Chair

5  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE 
(GEGJC) UPDATE 

To receive a verbal update on the GEGJC meeting held on 28 July 2020 
and held earlier the same day from the Chair, Cllr Patrick Molyneux.

Scrutiny members are invited to attend the GEGJC meeting in an observer 
capacity. Please refer to the following link to view the agenda and 
supporting documents for the GEGJC meetings:

28 July 2020: 
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MI
d=9907&Ver=4

Cllr Patrick 
Molyneux

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=9907&Ver=4
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=725&MId=9907&Ver=4


    

16 September 2020:
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=9534

6  BUSINESS RATES POOL 

To consider the report at Item 7 (a) of the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Committee papers from earlier the same day: 
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=9534

Andrew 
Cummings

7  BROADBAND (Pages 11 - 16)

To consider the attached report.

Cllr Patrick 
Molyneux

8  GFIRST LEP (Pages 17 - 28)

To receive a report on the latest project pipeline information and the 
Quarter 1 (2020/21) performance data.

Mally Findlater

9  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of future meetings:

23 September 2020 (additional date joint with the Environment
Committee)
21 October 2020
18 November 2020

INFORMATION ITEMS

10  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REPORT (Pages 29 - 40)

To note an update report from Colin Chick, Executive Director of 
Economy, Environment and Infrastructure on Economic Growth 
issues in the County (includes the Quarter 1 2020/21 performance 
data update).

Colin Chick

Membership –  Cllr Brian Robinson, Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair), 
Cllr Stephen Davies, Cllr Ben Evans, Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair), Cllr Klara Sudbury and 
Cllr Sajid Patel Cllr Nicky Packer, Cllr Paul McCloskey, Cllr John Murphy, Cllr Gina Blomefield and 
Cllr Simon Pickering

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Acting Monitoring 
Officer, (Rob Ayliffe Tel:01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior 
to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Sophie Benfield, Democratic Services Adviser 

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=9534
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=9534
mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

:01452 324094/ e-mail: sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Members are required to sign the attendance list.
2 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see page 81 of 

the Constitution).

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

mailto:sophie.benfield@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of a meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee held 
(virtually) on Thursday 2 July 2020.

PRESENT:
Cllr Brian Robinson
Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr Kevin Cromwell (Chair)
Cllr Stephen Davies
Cllr Ben Evans
Cllr Kate Haigh (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Klara Sudbury

Cllr Nicky Packer
Cllr Paul McCloskey
Cllr Sajid Patel
Cllr John Murphy
Cllr Gina Blomefield
Cllr Simon Pickering

Officers in attendance: Sophie Benfield, Dev Chakraborty and Colin Chick and Simon 
Excell.

1. APOLOGIES 

No apologies were received for this meeting.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

3. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meetings held on 30 October 2019, 20 November 2019 and 26 
February 2020 were approved.

4. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE UPDATE 

4.1 The Chair invited Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Chair of the Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC), to present this item and 
Members noted the following points:

 Under the current governance arrangements, the GEGJC 6 year term 
was due to end in September 2020. The Committee agreed to extend this 
for a further 18 months.

 The two SEDF funding requests for the Central Gloucestershire City 
Region Board and Multi-Modal Transport Brief were approved, as was 
the proposal for the continuation of the Gloucestershire Strategic 
Planning Coordination Project.

 There was a discussion at the meeting about how the Scrutiny 
Committee could be involved with the Covid-19 Economic Recovery 
planning for Gloucestershire.

 It was acknowledge that we are still in uncertain times and economic 
recovery was a very fluid issue which GEGJC would continue to monitor.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

 It was agreed that GEGJC would take a co-ordination role on the 
economic recovery response to ensure that all partners were working 
together, not replicating work but also not missing any gaps.

 It was agreed that GEGJC would meet for a second time at the end of 
July for a one item agenda on recovery planning.

Questions

4.2 It was questioned what role the Central Gloucestershire City Region Board 
would play in the economic recovery of the county and whether it had been 
impacted by the pandemic. It was advised that the Board would still be a key 
component for Gloucestershire’s Vision 2050 project but as with everything 
else, it would need to be revisited in light of the Covid-19 impact. How the 
county moved forward to 2050 would now need to include lessons learnt 
from the pandemic. It was requested that the Committee be kept up to date 
on any changes/activities of the Board.

4.3 A discussion followed about the Committee’s role in scrutinising the work of 
the GEGJC and GFirst LEP in relation to the economic recovery planning. 
Cllr Cromwell as Chair of the Scrutiny Committee had attended the GEGJC 
meeting on 2 July 2020 and requested an answer to the following questions: 
How are you going to involve the scrutiny committee in the economic 
recovery process?; How will the scrutiny committee be kept informed of the 
work being undertaken by the Joint Committee/GFirst?; and What 
contribution can the scrutiny committee make to the recovery process?. It 
was advised that these questions would form part of the discussions at the 
next GEGJC meeting at the end of July 2020.

4.4 It was stressed by the Committee the importance of receiving up to date and 
timely information on the recovery planning and decisions taken, be this by 
the Joint Committee or the GFirst LEP. It would be impossible for scrutiny to 
fulfil its function if this information was not being shared effectively. It was 
appreciated that some of this information would be sensitive and could not 
be shared wider or discussed in a public forum, but that should not mean 
scrutiny members were unable to access it.

4.5 A member recognised that money would need to be spent to get the 
economy moving again and questioned what approach would be taken 
towards decision making to ensure that we were doing the right thing for 
Gloucestershire. In response, it was explained that the county was facing 
unprecedented times, and partners were working together to understand the 
best approach to its recovery. Whilst the answer to this remained unclear, it 
was important to make sure this was a joint discussion between all partners, 
and that all discussions and decisions were scrutinised along the way by the 
appropriate bodies. In addition, any decision would need to be supported by 
an appropriate evidence base.

4.6 Following this, it was questioned whether the Council had considered any 
additional decision making structures for recovery. It was advised that the 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

GEGJC had agreed to act as a steering group for the decision making and 
therefore it did not need to create an additional body.

4.7 In reference to support of local businesses, it was confirmed that over £125 
million had been distributed to businesses during the pandemic and it had 
been done in an incredibly short amount of time. The FSB, Circle 2 Success 
and Growth Hub were all focusing on helping to share information and up to 
date government guidance across the county’s businesses.

5. GFIRST LEP UPDATE 

5.1 The Chair invited Dev Chakraborty, Deputy Chief Executive of the GFirst 
LEP, to give a verbal update to the Committee.

Growth Deal

5.2 It was advised that the LEP had worked hard throughout the pandemic to 
ensure key projects for the county remained in progress, but highlighted this 
had been challenging behind the scenes. Although some time had inevitably 
been lost, key projects such as the Railway Station, West Cheltenham 
Transport Scheme etc. had not suffered the full lockdown impact.

Inward Investment Project

5.3 Members noted this was a project aimed at trying to attract foreign owned 
business into the county, and considering the impact of Covid-19 on the 
world’s economy, it had come to quite a halt for the time being. Unfortunately 
all major national and international trade events from March onwards had 
been cancelled and clearly no business was looking to relocate anywhere at 
the moment.

5.4 The team had been redeployed to help with the LEP’s Covid-19 response 
and recovery planning, which had included making outbound calls to 
companies throughout the county to understand the effects of the pandemic 
and what issues they needed help with. This information was then being fed 
into the LEP’s own recovery planning and daily calls with Government.

Investment Portfolio 

5.5 It was advised that the LEP always tried to have a live pipeline of 
infrastructure projects ready for any potential government funding. A new 
funding pot was announced by central Government, called the ‘Getting 
Building Fund’, but the turnaround time for submitting projects was incredibly 
tight, just 6 working days form the fund announcement to projects being 
submitted.

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

5.6 The criteria to apply for this funding was quite specific for example, the 
projects had to be ‘shovel ready’, be completed by December 2021 with a 
key focus on recovery, job creation and green credentials.

5.7 After working hard with all local authority partners, education and the private 
sector, Gloucestershire submitted 15 projects totalling £52 million worth of 
work. A subsequent announcement advised that LEPs in England would 
share a pot of £900 million and broadly speaking as Gloucestershire 
represented about 1% of economic output for England, the LEP anticipated 
they would be allocated about £9 million.

5.8 The submission included familiar projects for the County such as the Kings 
Square Development, Tewkesbury Garden Town, and Cheltenham to 
Gloucester cycleway etc. Members noted the LEP would know more in the 
coming few weeks about which projects had been accepted but they were 
now currently working with partners to complete their full business case 
ready for submission by July 2020.

Questions

5.9 A member sought clarity on the need for projects to be ‘shovel ready’, it was 
their understanding that in order to be at this stage, these project ideas must 
have been conceived before the pandemic and were therefore not actually 
being responsive to recovery. It was advised that as previously stated, some 
of the projects that had been submitted were already working away in the 
background, but these projects still had to meet the criterion for the funding 
e.g. to create jobs. However, the LEP also asked partners for any new, 
‘exceptional’ ideas that were not already on the existing pipeline and 
therefore some of the 15 made the shortlist at very short notice and were 
responsive to the pandemic. Members were reminded that it was always the 
LEP’s job to drive economic recovery, regardless of the economy’s state.

5.10 It was queried whether the deadline for completion applied to all submitted 
projects. It was advised that completion did not necessarily mean the whole 
project, for example some of the larger projects submitted like Kings Square, 
the funding would only go towards part of it. As GCC is the partner 
submitting the cycle highway projects for example, the team have made sure 
both schemes were well progressed and if/when funding became available, it 
was ready to be used straight away and combined with existing funding.

5.11 A member requested for the project pipeline to be shared with the 
Committee. It was noted that the pipeline was not currently publicly available 
due to some promoters marking their projects confidential, and to avoid 
building expectations until the funding allocation was clear. It was agreed 
that the Chair would discuss offline with the LEP about sharing confidential 
information with the Committee as it was stressed Members were allowed to 
have access to this and it would help to improve their scrutiny function.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

5.12 The Committee noted that central Government had created a task force to 
help revive the highstreets, and Gloucestershire was the only LEP in the 
country to have a representative on it. In addition, the LEP  were currently 
considering a ‘Think Gloucestershire’ campaign which would seek to 
encourage people to buy locally, have staycations and support local 
procurement.

5.13 Finally, there was a discussion about the Covid-19 financial support for 
business. A member highlighted that the recent grants from Government had 
not been enough for some businesses, whilst others were thriving and still 
receiving the grant money. It was stressed that this did not seem a very fair 
system. 

5.14 In response, members heard that the business grants were based on purely 
rateable value and this reflected the speed needed to turn around such 
schemes during the pandemic. Unfortunately due to the unprecedented 
situation, it was inevitable that some businesses would benefit more than 
others. Members noted however that some businesses like supermarkets, 
for example, were donating their grants to charity. The second wave of 
business grants was more discretionary and had much more rigid guidelines 
in place. The LEP were waiting to hear from the Chancellor what action 
would be taken next to support businesses.

5.15 It was also questioned whether the recent ‘bounce back’ loan announcement 
from Government had considered that some businesses may cease 
operations before repayments on their loan were completed. It was advised 
that the LEP were currently awaiting further details on the details but 
suggested the banks were preparing to not receive 100% repayments on 
these loans.

6. COVID-19 RESPONSE - PLANNING FOR GLOUCESTERSHIRE'S ECONOMIC 
RECOVERY 

6.1 The Chair acknowledged that this item had already been covered in some 
depth during the previous items. Cllr Molyneux confirmed they had nothing 
further to add, the Chair therefore invited Dev Chakraborty and Colin Chick 
to comment.

6.2 Members noted that all local authorities in the county (7) were producing 
their own recovery plans, plus the LEP who were producing an economic 
sector based recovery plan.

6.3 As mentioned previously, one of the LEP’s key roles during the pandemic 
was sharing business intelligence for the county via Leadership 
Gloucestershire. This had included a sector analysis report and economic 
modelling broken down by district.

6.4 The Committee heard that officers saw the role of GCC as one of leadership, 
coordination and analysis, and then using that analysis and evidence to 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

check and make sure recovery was moving in the right direction, highlight 
any issues and fill gaps where necessary.

6.5 It would be vital that major schemes remained on track to strengthen the 
economy for the future, for example Junction 9 and 10 and the Cyber Park. 
In addition, localised work would need to be considered such as a bigger 
emphasis on skills training (especially reskilling into different sectors).

6.6 It was noted that research had shown the hardest hit age group economically 
would be 17-24 year olds who might still be in education and have little to no 
work experience.  The job market was therefore likely to be significantly 
harder for this age group, regardless if they had a certain level of 
qualification or not.

6.7 It was stressed however that recovery needed to be a slow burn fuse, we did 
not know the size of the problem at the moment, and a lot of the potential 
economic issues were still being ‘covered’ by the government financial 
schemes. 

6.8 The Committee noted that it would be best to go for a sector based approach 
to recovery, by raising the platform to a high enough level for all businesses 
in that sector to ‘springboard’ off across the county, rather than picking and 
supporting individual companies.

6.9 The Chair also invited Simon Excell, Lead Commissioner for Strategic 
Infrastructure, to add any comments. The Committee were reminded that in 
early March, the Government gave the go ahead for three major schemes 
(A417, Junction 10 and Junction 9), and then two weeks later the pandemic 
hit which obviously brought huge complications and delays.

6.10 It was advised however, that schemes GCC had control and funding for, the 
Council were doing everything they could, with the resource and capacity 
available, to ensure these schemes progressed.

6.11 A member requested that the reports mentioned by the LEP were shared 
with the Committee.

ACTION: DEV CHAKRABORTY

7. WORK PLAN 

The Committee discussed the following points in relation to its ongoing work plan:

 The Local Transport Plan scrutiny meeting has been rescheduled as an 
additional meeting date for Economic Growth members on 23 September 
2020;

 For 16 September 2020 meeting, members requested an update on: 
Broadband/Mobile Connectivity and the Business Rates Pool;

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

 As Chair of the Taxi Licensing Task Group, Cllr Haigh confirmed that the 
group potentially had one meeting left before a final report would be ready to 
submit to the Committee. It was agreed this report would either be brought to 
the September Committee date, or discussed via email by members, with a 
summary of views being recorded by DSU.

 Members noted there was a suggested item on reviewing the changes to the 
Joint Core Strategy for housing. Whilst acknowledging that GCC was not 
responsible for housing (this was a district responsibility), it was stressed that 
this was a Joint scrutiny Committee and had district member representation 
from around the county, which made it a suitable place to discuss a joint 
approach to housing, which was sustainable and met the needs of the 
county’s residents. Members agreed to keep an item on the future list to look 
at housing availability, incorporating any appropriate discussion on the Joint 
Core Strategy.

 In relation to housing, it was also noted that there was an increasing interest 
in modular development and with the current Government strategy of trying 
to build the country out of economic crisis; this would be a really important 
area to look at. It was suggested the Committee could do an ‘enquiry-like’ 
meeting on this topic and speak to national experts to scrutinise the 
information available on modular builds. It was agreed this item would 
remain on the future list and the Chair would look into how to take it forward. 
Members were reminded to email DSU if they had any suggestions.

 A member acknowledged that the pandemic’s impact on business and 
employment in the county would only become clear once the furloughing 
schemes had come to an end. It was request for this to be added to the 
future work plan.

 It was agreed that the LEP would update the Committee on their Industrial 
Strategy when it was timely to do so.

 The two future items relating to transport were removed as it was agreed this 
would be adequately covered during the Committee’s ongoing involvement in 
the review of the Council’s Local Transport Plan.

 It was highlighted that as research showed young people were likely to be 
the most effected economically post-Covid, the Committee requested a 
future item on skills and work force development post-Covid (with a particular 
focus on young people).

 A future item was added to review the strategy for the future of the high 
street across the County.

 It was agreed that DSU would have an offline discussion with the LEP to 
check whether the performance report deadlines had been affected by the 
pandemic and understand what would be timely to schedule for their 
September update.

 Finally, the Chair highlighted the two information items on this agenda for the 
Committee to review.

CHAIR
Meeting concluded at 12:20.

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

Page 8



ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2020-21

16 September 2020 23 September 2020 [EXTRA]
Joint with Environment Committee

Business Rates Pool

Connectivity (Broadband)

GFirst LEP
Quarter 1 performance data 2020/2021

Project pipeline information

Local Transport Plan Review – post 
public consultation

21 October 2020 18 November 2020

Tentative: Modular/carbon neutral housing

GFirst LEP item GFirst LEP item

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS

1 Social Mobility update 2021 5 Modular developments/carbon neutral 
plans

2 National Policy Development (including industrial 
strategy)

6 Taxi Licensing task group report

3 Housing availability (incorporating a review of 
potential changes to the Joint Core Strategy)

7 Retail – strategy for the future of the high 
street

4 Skills / work force development post-Covid (with a 
particular focus on young people)

8 Covid impact on employment and 
businesses in the County

P
age 10



1

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee 

Report Title: Fastershire Programme Delivery Update

Meeting Date: 16th September 2020

Chairman: Patrick Molyneux, Lead Cabinet Member Economy, Education 
and Skills

Lead Officer: Simon Excell, Lead Commissioner Strategic Infrastructure and 
SRO for the Fastershire Project

Purpose of Report: To provide Scrutiny members with an update on the delivery of 
the jointly public funded Fastershire Broadband Infrastructure 
Programme 

Planned Dates The Fastershire Strategy – covers the period up to 2022

Background 
documents:

Approved Fastershire Broadband Strategy – 2019 – 2022
https://www.fastershire.com/about-fastershire/strategy

Recommendations Members to note the update of the delivery of the programme 
to date, the delivery of the remaining contracts with suppliers 
and the plans for the Stage 5 new Community Broadband Grant 
scheme, due to be launched later in the year.

Page 11

Agenda Item 7

https://www.fastershire.com/about-fastershire/strategy


2

Report Digital Connectivity 

This is a very broad agenda that covers a number of strands of 
work and activities such as physical infrastructure delivery, 
digital service provision, education and training, social inclusion 
etc. and involves a plethora of public and private sector partners 
including telecommunications and mobile network suppliers, 
ISPs, National and Local Government, as well as other local 
partners including LEPs. 

Enhanced digital connectivity will have far-reaching implications 
for Gloucestershire, where all residents and businesses will feel 
the benefits from change. Improved digital connectivity will 
enrich people’s lives and improve the living standards of all age 
groups.

Digital connectivity will also reshape the way we secure 
economic growth. Businesses across Gloucestershire have the 
ability to seize the digital opportunity to integrate new 
processes and offer new services. They should attract new 
talent through the offer of more flexible and remote working 
opportunities. The area will draw in new high value businesses, 
who are attracted by our digital connectivity offer and great 
lifestyle for employees. 

On-line public services are advancing in their functionality, 
therefore better digital connectivity is important for residents 
and business to interact with services in an accessible and cost 
effective way. Using digital can mean less need to travel in 
reducing people’s carbon footprint to access services.

With the direct impact of the current COVID crisis, demand for 
improved digital connectivity and good service coverage 
connectivity has significantly heightened. 

This briefing note covers one element of this wider agenda, and 
provides an update on the physical delivery of the Fastershire 
Broadband infrastructure project, a joint partnership project 
between Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) and 
Herefordshire Council. The project utilises public subsidies to 
attract private sector investment to those areas where the 
market has failed. This has been a major priority for GCC, 
identified in its Corporate Plans and, since 2012, GCC has 
continued to commit significant capital and revenue funding to 
deliver the Fastershire Project to enable the county to attract 
the private sector investment.

Page 12



3

Fastershire Broadband Programme

As technology, aspirations and opportunities change, the vision 
for broadband in Gloucestershire and Herefordshire for 2019-22 
is outlined below: 

‘Fastershire will enable all residents and businesses in 
Herefordshire and Gloucestershire to access the connectivity 
they need and encourage people to use faster broadband to do 
more online, boost business growth and achieve their 
potential’.

The approved Fastershire Broadband Strategy 2019-22 outlines 
5 stages.  Phase 1 of the Strategy has provided approximately 
90% of the homes and businesses across the two counties with 
access to superfast broadband speeds of 30mbps or above. The 
delivery of the current phase 2 of the Strategy will increase the 
total superfast coverage to around 98%, as phase 2 seeks to 
provide faster broadband coverage to those properties, not yet 
covered in phase 1.

Stage 1 – Commercial Deployment

The Fastershire Project Team continues to monitor the market 
and the commercial investment plans of the 
telecommunications suppliers, which is very dynamic to ensure 
that we only invest the public subsidy to those areas where 
there is market failure.

Recent good news announcements have been made by a 
number of suppliers including Full Fibre, City Fibre, Openreach 
and Zzoomm, outlining further commercial investment plans, to 
deploy full fibre broadband to a number of  towns and cities 
across the county:

Gloucester – City Fibre Start early 2021 – 3 year deployment

Cheltenham – City Fibre Start early 2021 – 3 year deployment

Stroud – Zzoomm Start early 2021 – 2 year deployment

Cirencester – Openreach – No timescales at present, but before 
2025

These plans are very good news for the county, and will further 
enhance the broadband infrastructure and capability that has 
been achieved to date from our programme and previous 
commercial investments made.

The Fastershire Project Team has also recently completed their 
latest Open Market Review with industry providers/suppliers to 
seek information about any further planned investment. The 

Page 13



4

conclusion is that circa. 6,000 premises in Gloucestershire are 
not in any commercial or publically funded plan for upgrade to 
superfast. Therefore these remaining properties will be the 
focus/target for the team for the new Fastershire Community 
Grant, which will be launched later in the year (Stage 5 of the 
Strategy). 

Stage 2

This major contract with BT is now completed and delivered 
70,000 Superfast premises. 

Stage 3

A smaller further contract with BT Openreach (Lot 3a), in 
Cheltenham and Gloucester is now 80% complete with circa. 
500 premises remaining to be delivered in Cheltenham and 
Gloucester.

Gigaclear Contracts

Lot 1

Gigaclear had been awarded an initial contract to deliver Lot 1 
Cotswolds in Phase 2 of the Strategy in 2015. This was the first 
of our ultrafast fibre to the premises to parts of the Cotswolds 
and completed serving c. 7,000 premises.

Through a procurement process, further smaller ‘lot’ contracts 
have been awarded to Gigaclear to roll out delivery in parts of 
the Forest of Dean, as well as areas in the north and south of 
the county that were not upgraded to faster broadband in 
Phase 1.  

Lot 3d 
This covers parts of the northern areas of Gloucestershire and is 
c.75% complete.

Lot 3e 

This contract covers parts of the southern areas of 
Gloucestershire and is c.25% complete.

Lot 2/3c 
This covers parts of the Forest of Dean contract and is c.15% 
complete.

Stage 4

We are in the process of finalising a new small lot contract with 
Airband, which is currently going through the assurance process 
to bring FTTP to c.700 more premises in the Forest of Dean.

Page 14



5

Stage 5

We have an established Marches and Gloucestershire Business 
Grant scheme that has been very successful and delivered a 
number of grants to businesses across the two counties. The 
ERDF grant scheme provides up to 100% of the capital 
installation costs for an eligible SME, that is not included in the 
Fastershire main roll out plan, that can demonstrate the 
economic return.

We have recently been successful in securing some additional 
EU funding, and therefore extended the grant scheme until 
September 2021. The project team are currently working on a 
major project with a landowner of two business parks in 
Nailsworth, utilising the grant process to bring connectivity to 
those businesses on the parks, which is currently out to tender. 

New Fastershire Community Grant Scheme

Under Stage 5, a new Fastershire Community Grant scheme will 
target the final c.3% of properties that still require access to 
faster broadband. This scheme will be launched in late Autumn 
2020. Due to the nature of these properties, the project team 
will need to consider and use a more bespoke approach, and 
individual grants will allow the project to find a solution specific 
for each community. For example, in some cases the solution 
may mean using a new supplier or different technology in order 
to reach a deeply rural community. In other cases the grant may 
be used to extend an existing network further in order to reach 
the outlying properties that were too expensive to reach in a 
previous rollout contract or commercial delivery. This scheme 
will be supported by a dynamic purchasing scheme, and the 
project team will work closely with those local communities that 
register interest on the portal on the Fastershire website, to find 
an appropriate solution.

Fastershire Demand Stimulation Activity

The physical network is one element of developing access. The 
two councils, through the Fastershire project, also have a role, 
along with others, to encourage take up and adoption of the 
enhanced infrastructure and connectivity, as well as to reduce 
the soft barriers to digital connectivity.

Working alongside the suppliers, we have developed an active 
communications plan and activities that focuses on campaigns 
and promotion activity to drive up adoption and awareness via 

Page 15



6

Faster Communities, businesses and farmers. It is hoped that 
such activities will stimulate the take up of the service in local 
communities during the roll out/delivery phase, as well as 
continuing to provide some training and awareness of activities, 
to ensure that people are not digitally excluded. This will also 
help residents and businesses to make the most of the 
significant investment made by local and central government 
into superfast and full fibre broadband. Additional resources 
have been committed to enhance this area of work across the 
two counties over the next two years.

Fibre Training Centre

The potential to establish a training centre to provide the skills 
required by some of our smaller suppliers has been highlighted 
as a potential project/intervention, and is at a very early stage 
of being investigated. All suppliers are hampered by the 
competition for skilled labour and the quality of those that are 
on the patch is variable. Whilst some of the major suppliers 
have their own training centres, many have to rely on the 
current labour pool to source and recruit their workforce. This 
could offer an opportunity to inflate the available workforce, 
increasing the pool and quality as well as providing 
opportunities for those who may be out of work, and ultimately 
could assist with the acceleration of delivery plans over the next 
few years. 

BDUK Outside in Programme

The project team are working closely with other local authority 
bodies at a national level along with the LGA, as part of the 
ADEPT Digital Connectivity Working Group, and also sit on a 
working group managed by ADEPT, which is supporting BDUK 
(the Government’s Broadband infrastructure delivery body) as it 
designs the next phase of support, Outside in programme. This 
has a number of benefits, most notably giving Fastershire a 
detailed understanding of how applicable the future BDUK 
approach will be in localities and in particular Gloucestershire 
and Herefordshire. 

Page 16



Gloucestershire Joint Economic Scrutiny Committee 
16th September 2020 

 
Report: Performance Reports – Local growth fund (LGF) Q1 2020/21 
  
Presented by: Mally Findlater, Programme Manager, GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership 
Background 
 
Supporting papers: 

• Growth Deal Progress Dashboard Q1 20/21 

• Growth Deal Project Summary Q1 20/21 

• LGF Data Capture Q1 20/21BEIS return - summary 

GFirst maintains programme management performance data based on monthly, quarterly and annual 

returns from all projects. This is managed in collaboration with the Accountable Body within the forum 

of the Programme Management Group (PMG). The Dashboard and Project Summary are published on 

the GFirst website, and provide an overview of the key metrics associated with the Local Growth Fund 

(LGF) capital investments. 

To satisfy the commitments with BEIS, a quarterly report is submitted to them, based on the same 

data, but using a complicated reporting spreadsheet that is provided and managed by BEIS. The LGF 

Data Capture Q1 20/21BEIS return – summary is attached and covers the Q1 20/21 period (1stJanuary 

to 31st March 2020). 

At the start of the programme, each LEP was given a financial profile for the annual allocations of LGF. 

The reporting against this is for: 

• Out turn – Where there is a contractual commitment to a project in the form of a funding 

agreement or memorandum of understanding, the accountable body manages the process of 

moving funds across to the project, or, in the case of GCC projects, a holding account.  

 

• Actual Spend – projects report quarterly on the actual funds spent on delivering the project. 

This may be in advance of claiming the funds from the Account. 

Q1 2020/21 report summary: 

Programme Outturn –the commitment in 2015-2017 was £36.250m. The amount reported was 

£5.232m under which has been recouped in subsequent years within which the amount reported was 

in line with the allocation. 

Q1 Outturn numbers were strong at 56% of forecast.  This is due to the approval by the LEP Board on 

9th June for the Cheltenham Cyber Project (WCTIS) Phases 3 and 4 and the West Cheltenham Walking 

and Cycling Infrastructure (WCWCI) project.   

Q1 Actual spend reporting this quarter was quite weak, but this is predominantly due to the impact 

of COVID-19.  Feedback from the project promoters indicates that work is resuming on sites and are 

confident that a much stronger spend position will be reported next quarter. 

Government advice currently is that, where possible, all Local Growth Funds (LGF) should be spent 

by March 2021. Due to the work that has been undertaken throughout the year on Contingency 

Planning and tight discussions with project promoters to gain confidence of delivery, there are 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



mechanisms in place to report spend effectively in line with our ‘freedoms of flexibilities’ which is 

being managed by the Programme Management Group (PMG) in consultation with BEIS. 

It has been agreed by BEIS and approved by the LEP Board in the 14th July meeting that the remaining 

£450k of unallocated LGF funding will be used to top up the £11.3m Getting Building Fund Grant and 

this will be reported as appropriate on future returns. 

The Contractual Commitments mirror the outturn at £8.495m for Phases 3 and 4 WCTIS and WCWCI. 

The 22 jobs created this quarter are all associated with the Farm 491 project interventions.  The job 

forecasts for 20-21 are linked with the Growth Hub as well as construction related roles associated 

with construction of Gloucestershire Airport Anson Park, WCTIS, A40 Innsworth Gateway and 

Gloucester Railway Station projects. 

There are 405 houses forecast for 2020-21 and these are predominantly linked to the A40 Innsworth 

Gateway project.  

 

The 11,000m2  forecast for new or improved floorspace is all associated with the remainder of 

Growth Hub Network rollout. 

In addition to the LGF financial reporting, the Growth Deal with Government identified a number of 

key output metrics that are monitored and reported (see dashboard and BEIS return): 

• Non- LGF spend (leverage & match) –This is delivering well against forecast and commitment 

• Housing - A large number of the forecast housing will be delivered beyond the programme 

period 

• Jobs - The jobs numbers have been lower than forecast, which is partially due to under-

reporting by the Growth Hub, which is being rectified. There will also be a delay related to the 

Cyber Park beyond the programme end. 

• Skills – Delivery is on track. Due to the annual nature of reporting qualifications, these appear 

lower than forecast in Q1 

• Apprenticeships - Delivery is already ahead of commitment 

• Employment land – There is a continues to be a delay, as a significant number is linked to the 

Cyber Park 

• Commercial Floorspace - There is a continues to be a delay. Some of this will be delivered 

within programme, and a % beyond (specifically the Cyber Park) 

Recommendations: 
 
This paper is for information only. 
 
If you require further information please email: 
Mally.findlater@gfirstlep.com 

Page 18



Gloucestershire Joint Economic Scrutiny Committee 
16th September 2020 

 
Report: Project Pipeline and Getting Building Fund 
  
Presented by: Mally Findlater, Programme Manager, GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership 
Background 
 

Capital Investment Pipeline  

Summary  

‘The Gloucestershire Economic Growth Capital Investment Pipeline’ (CIP) has been developed to 
identify all capital projects that have the potential to have a transformational impact on the 
economy of Gloucestershire. The CIP is a living document, actively managed by the Senior Officer 
Group of the GEGJC which aims to provide a comprehensive view of all capital projects (including 
infrastructure/regeneration projects) which could make a substantial and well evidenced 
contribution to economic growth. Identified priorities from this process are used to inform the 
business case selection process conducted by the LEP Board. The CIP is funding source neutral. 
https://www.gfirstlep.com/project-pipeline/ 

 
Following calls during 2019, an Investment Portfolio ‘long list’ was established with 32 projects with a 

total value of £265m. In order to prepare for future opportunities, and to align with local strategies 

(including the Local Industrial Strategy), a number of sector specific mini ‘masterplans’ have been 

produced with the Business Groups. In addition to other strategies (Rail, transport etc.) this will 

provide extra context for the prioritization and development stage of the pipeline once more detail 

has been received from Government on UKSPF (or other funding streams). 

This process was ‘paused’ temporarily during the current crisis related to Covid-19, whilst we 

awaited guidance from Government on the future of funding. (see below ‘Getting Building Fund’) 

 
Key Actions for 20/21 

• Development and prioritisation of project ideas in response to emerging strategies and 

opportunities, including the draft Local Industrial Strategy, and guidance from Government 

• Preparation of Investment plan by March 2021 

Getting Building Fund (GBF) 
 
As a response to the unprecedented economic challenges related to the Covid crisis, Government 
announced a capital grant funding programme to be delivered through LEP’s to stimulate economic 
recovery through targeted infrastructure investment. The imperative was to process this 
opportunity at pace, which translated to an accelerated process for the LEP team that ensured due 
process was followed, but in a much shorter time than usual. 
 
10.06.20 – Robert Jenrick MP (Secretary of State for Housing Communities and Local Government) 
informed LEP’s of the fund. The application deadline was 18.06.20, giving just a week to respond. 
There were very specific criteria for consideration: 

 
we are willing to consider exceptional, additional shovel-ready capital projects which can be 
delivered within 18 months. Any new proposals must meet value for money standards agreed 

Page 19

https://www.gfirstlep.com/project-pipeline/


through local assurance frameworks and longer-running projects with a funding tail beyond 2022 are 
out of scope. Where considering new projects, these must deliver on two overarching objectives – 
driving up economic growth and jobs and supporting green recovery – and would primarily enable:  

 
• town and city centre modernisation through targeted infrastructure investments unleashing their 
longer-term economic potential;  

• investment in physical connectivity to improve the functioning of the local economy;  
• investment in innovation ecosystem including through improvements to research and development 
facilities driving up business productivity;  

• improvements to human capital;  

• improving digital connectivity, in order to support economic performance, particularly in more 
isolated areas.  

11.06.20 – David Owen notified the LEP Board, and informed them of the processes and principals 
that would be implemented – in line with our assurance framework, as follows: 

1. The existing project pipeline will form the basis of developing projects to go forward via this 
route 

2. By exception, where the criteria can be met, fully worked up projects not currently included 
may be brought into the pipeline 

3. The GFirst LEP Executive team will work with current scheme promoters to ensure that 
projects can meet the criteria 

4. The GFirst LEP Executive team will prioritise projects using the criteria set out in the letter 

5. A sub group of Board members and will discuss, prioritise and approve the final documents 
for submission. Any Board members with an interest in projects were not invited to join the 
sub group. 

11.06.20 – All projects on the long list were invited to express an interest to be included if they were 
able to confirm that they met the criteria. Those that expressed an interest were given the 
opportunity to provide extra, targeted information to inform the selection process. 

A scoring matrix was developed and implemented in line with the criteria specific to this fund. This 
was applied as above. 

18.06.20 – An ambitious application submitted for 15 projects with a value of £52m, with an 
estimation that we might be allocated in the region of £10m 

23.06.20 – David Owen informed the LEP Board and Local Authority Leaders of the submission in 
confidence, including the list of projects 

23.06.20 – Accountable Body informed of the submission in confidence, including the list of projects 

02.07.20 – Government confirmed an allocation of £11.3m for Gloucestershire 

There followed intense negotiations with BEIS. The £11.3m was increased to £11.75m with the 
inclusion of £450K of unallocated LGF funds. The constraints of the funding envelope were 
challenging. The prioritised projects at the top of the list were asked to consider if they could deliver 
with less, if necessary. This gave some limited flexibility, and the final selection was made based on 
what was possible within the funds available. 

Page 20



21.07.20 – David Owen informed the LEP Board of the results of the process as follows: 

The five projects that will be funded (subject to final approval by Government, due diligence, 

and LEP board approval) represent a diverse mix of projects: 

The ‘Minster Innovation Exchange’ with Cheltenham Borough Council – this low carbon 
modular construction will deliver innovative co-working space in central Cheltenham. It will 
provide a purpose-built performance, event and community venue, and connect to the High 
Street through upgraded historic linkages from the Cheltenham Minster grounds. It will also 
act as a pilot for developments at the Cyber Park – allocated £3.114 million.  

‘The Gloucestershire Applied Digital Skills Centre’ with Cirencester College – building a new 
landmark building, modelled on digital industries delivering the skills needed in the Cyber 
and Digital sectors – allocated £4.48 million. 

‘Cyber Incubation Units’ with Gloucestershire College – creating a range of new office space, 
shared and dedicated laboratories, workshops and co-working facilities designed specifically 
for high-tech, cyber-based entrepreneurs and innovators, with access to educational 
facilities – allocated £950,000. 

‘The Digital Innovation Farm’ with Hartpury University - creating new innovation and 
demonstration workspace for high growth SMEs in the growth phase already operating 
within the agri-tech sector to explore, test, trial, research and develop products, or enhance 
existing ones – allocated £1.25 million. 

‘A Construction Education Centre’ with the KW Bell Group Ltd in Cinderford - a brand new 

multipurpose conference and training facility to be based in the heart of the Forest of Dean. 

Thoughtfully designed to link the construction industry with education by providing a 

learning environment that is digitally advanced, safe, interactive and relevant. The Centre 

will be co-funded by a privately-owned family business, which has been in operation for over 

50 years, founded in, and operating within, the Forest of Dean – allocated £1.956 million. 

Process: These projects have worked closely and at pace with the LEP team to complete updated 
Business cases, submissions for due diligence assessment, scrutiny by the Investment Panel and 
consideration by the LEP Board for funding approval.  
18.08.20 – Board approval for: ‘Cyber Incubation Units’ with Gloucestershire College and ‘The 
Gloucestershire Applied Digital Skills Centre’ with Cirencester College 
01.09.20 – Board approval for: The ‘Minster Innovation Exchange’ with Cheltenham Borough Council 
and ‘A Construction Education Centre’ with the KW Bell Group Ltd in Cinderford 
15.09.20 – Board to consider for approval: ‘The Digital Innovation Farm’ with Hartpury University  
 
Government has not provided formal guidance yet  on grant conditions attached to the GBF, 
although the assumption is that these will be the same as for LGF. On this basis the process has been 
conducted throughout in compliance with the local assurance framework. Draft funding agreements 
have been prepared, but will only be issued once this guidance has been provided. 
 
 
This paper is for information only. 
 
If you require further information please email: 
Mally.findlater@gfirstlep.com 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Growth Deal Projects Summary Key

As at 27/07/2020 Funding approved and progressing

Funding allocated but pending final board approval

Current Total Forecasts with Actuals where available

Project Name Growth Fund Category Homes Total jobs
Private 

Leverage £m's

Public Sector 

Leverage £m's

Commercial 

Floorspace m2 

Employment 

Land Ha

Skills 

Capital m2 App'ships
BCR (Road 

schemes)

Growth Hub Amalgamated 9,400,000£            Business Support 0 6644 £0.00 £26.0 2127 0 3800 0 N/A

Merrywalks Centre, Stroud* 3,000,000£            Business Support 0 500 £27.0 £0.0 20292 1.37 0 0 N/A

Farm 491 2,920,000£            Business Support 0 207 £0.8 £0.0 1380 0 0 0 N/A

Glos Airport Anson Park Development* 1,885,000£            Business Support 0 85 £7.0 £0.0 7500 4 0 0 N/A

Glos Airport South Camp 550,000£               Business Support 0 106 £9.7 £0.0 12000 6.8 0 0 N/A

UK Digital Retail Innovation Centre 400,000£               Business Support 0 50 £0.2 £0.0 550 0 150 0 N/A

Cheltenham Cyber Park * 22,000,000£          Enabling Infrastructure 1100 7500 £50.0 £0.0 40000 45 0 0 N/A

Cinderford Northern Link Road 3,800,000£            Enabling Infrastructure 110 0 £0.0 £5.3 0 2 0 0 N/A

Gloucester Railway Station Improvements* 4,330,000£            Enabling Infrastructure 200 300 £7.7 £0.6 10000 5.3 0 0 N/A

A40 Innsworth Gateway* 4,530,000£            Housing 1300 630 £3.3 £0.0 5000 8.3 0 0 TBC

Blackfriars & Quayside 4,130,000£            Housing 250 45 £85.0 £12.0 4000 2.5 0 0 N/A

Hartpury College, Tech-to-Plate 1,000,000£            Innovation 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0.0 1415 0 N/A

GREEN Skills Centre 5,000,000£            Skills 0 125 £19.5 £15.1 0 10.7 4401 300 N/A

Berkeley Green Cyber Security Centre 3,000,000£            Skills 0 129 £4.0 £0.4 1461 0 1461 213 N/A

Cinderford  - New Gloscol Campus * 2,600,000£            Skills 55 150 £0.0 £12.5 0 0 6000 0 N/A

Gloucestershire STEM centres 2,096,000£            Skills 0 0 £0.0 £3.8 0 0 6141 1064 N/A

Elmbridge (Tail-end Major road scheme) 9,070,000£            Transport 0 0 £0.0 £5.2 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester Transport Hub ** 6,400,000£            Transport 100 0 £40.0 £8.8 1000 0 0 0 N/A

A419 Stonehouse Improvements 4,360,000£            Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 18

A40 Over Roundabout ** 2,230,000£            Transport 0 0 £0.1 £0.5 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester South West By Pass 2,000,000£            Transport 0 0 £0.1 £5.3 0 0 0 0 12

Berkeley Bridge Replacement 1,990,000£            Transport 0 0 £0.0 £1.0 0 0 0 0 5

West Cheltenham Walking and Cycling 1,600,000£            Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Cheltenham Spa Railway Station ** 1,497,000£            Transport 0 0 £1.8 £0.2 0 0 0 0 TBC

Lydney Cycling Improvements 1,000,000£            Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

St Barnabas Roundabout - scheme withdrawn by promoters 

(£1m). 

£450k re-allocation to top up Getting Building Fund.  

(£550k re-allocated to Gloucester Railway Station)

450,000£               Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Abbeymead /Metz Way ** 500,000£               Transport 0 0 £1.0 £1.2 0 0 0 0 4

Forecast Totals* 101,738,000£     3115 16471 £257.2 £97.9 105310 86.0 23368 1577

Full Programme Commitment 2255 14280 N/A 75.3 N/A 1014

* for GD3 schemes includes outcomes post 2021

** Original GLTB scheme

£285.8

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Growth Deal Progress Dashboard - all projects

Q1 20/21 to 30-06-20

Out turn of funds Totals (£m's)

Govt Profile (inc DfT schemes) £101.72

Actual (to Q1 20/21) m £92.55

Actual Spend vs Out turn Totals (£m's)

Plan £101.408

Actual (to Q1 20/21) m £64.64

(LGF spend only)

Jobs (direct & indirect) 15/16 & 16/17 Totals 

Plan 16676

Actual (to Q1 20/21) 2117

Direct Match - £m committed Totals (£m's)

Forecast £101.90

Actual (to Q1 20/21) m £111.72

Total Leverage - £m Totals (£m's)

Forecast £355.10

Actual (to Q1 20/21) m £181.75

Housing Unit starts Totals 

Forecast 3545

Actual (to Q1 20/21) 52

£64.64

2020/21

2019/20

899

2017/18

1160

2018/19

49 320

2019/20

775

2020/21

1855 2101

2020/21

3115

£46.1m £76.2m

2018/19

2015/16

£15.47m

2020-22

7546

2015/16

£14.859m

2020/212017/18

£13.355m

2018/19

£10.699m

£10.323m

Post 2021 

Spend will accelerate on Innswoth Gateway and Cheltenham Cyber Park developments, progress has slowed significantly in light of COVID-19 restrictions.

£18.385m £22.593m

2015/16 2016/17

£13.170m £29.150m

2019/20

£20.483m

2018/19 2019/20

2016/17

£15.66m

£92.55

£111.72

2019/20

£12.4m

2016/17 2017/18

£13.170m £23.802m £13.344m

2018/19

Post 2021

2401

2020/21

£82.2m,

£18.7m

Jobs activity from Growth Hub continues to be collected and recorded, although a recognition that the job numbers set are hugely ambitious. Inward Investment project should also contribute towards the target. 

2015/16

2117

Post 2021

£33.0m

52

2019/20

£76.8m

2017/18

£13.72m

£181.75

2018/19

£26.31m

£15.5m

It is anticipated that the current lag in leaverage will be enhanced from the ongoing Cheltenham Cyber Park Developments and the Blackfriars and Quayside developments

The housing starts figures will rise during 2020-2021. Phase 2 planning for Blackfriars approved. First 'Major' Housing Scheme associated with the A40 Innsworth Gateway project which is now underway.

£25.7m

2016/17 2017/18

Page 1 of 2

P
age 25



Growth Deal Progress Dashboard - all projects

Q1 20/21 to 30-06-20

Apprenticeship starts Totals 

Forecast 1577

Actual (to Q1 20/21) 2110

Skills - floorspace (m2) Totals m
2

Forecast 22453

Actual (to Q1 20/21) 21953

Commercial Floorspace (m2) Totals m
2

Forecast 105310

Actual (to Q1 20/21) 16515

(not to scale)

Employment Land (Ha) Total Ha

Forecast 86.0

Actual (to Q1 20/21) 21

Skills - Qualifications Totals 

Forecast 4960

Actual (to Q1 20/21) 3614

2020/21

1267

21953

16515

514

2017/18

900

2018/19

430 450

2018/19

6757

2019/20

24292 28500

2020/21

10542

1103

2019/20

1176

Further imminent development form the Growth Hub Network, Merrywalks, Gloucestershire Airport Anson Park, Gloucester Railway Station and Cheltenham Cyber Park projects are yet to contribute to this total.

3000

3614

2016/17

2016/17

9

2017/18

3

The vast majority of the Employment land is associated with the Cheltenham Cyber Park project.

9950

2019/20

257

2020/21

2018/19

2016/17

2017/18

2110

2017/18

100 340

2018/19

21

2015/16

11

2019/20

3

2020/21

60.97

Post 20212016/17 2017/18

2016/17

35000

1461

7761

Page 2 of 2

P
age 26



Growth Deal Dashboard

LEP Name Gloucestershire LEP

This Quarter: Q1_2021

17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-25

Houses Completed 0 0 0 49 3 0 - 52

Forecast for year 405 - 0 49 185 405 3,505 4,144

Progress towards forecast 0% - - 100% 2% 0% - 1%

Jobs

Jobs Created 22 1,177 110 547 254 22 - 2,110

Apprenticeships Created* 0 0 930 593 587 0 - 2,110

Jobs including Apprenticeships 22 1,177 1,040 1,140 841 22 4,220

Forecast for year 2,972 1,429 1,855 1,973 2,972 9,959 18,188

Progress towards forecast 1% 73% 61% 43% 1% 0% 23%

* Apprenticeships included within jobs totals prior to 2017

Skills

Area of new or improved floorspace (m2) 0 0 6,461 15,542 1,415 0 - 23,418

Forecast for year 11,000 1,461 9,950 2,915 11,000 0 25,326

Progress towards forecast 0% 442% 156% 49% 0% - 92%

Number of New Learners Assisted 0 0 1,009 2,292 2,270 0 - 5,571

Forecast for year 1,687 900 1,495 1,576 1,687 6,250 11,908

Progress towards forecast 0% 112% 153% 144% 0% - 47%

Transport

Length of Road Resurfaced 0.0 0.0 5.0 1.0 0.7 0.0 - 6.7

Length of Newly Built Road 0.0 0.0 3.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 - 3.0

Length New Cycle Ways 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0 5.0 0.0 - 6.0

Previous Quarter This Quarter Previous Quarter This Quarter

Project Name Q4_1920 Q1_2021 Project Name Q4_1920 Q1_2021

GROWTH HUB: Gloucestershire STEM Strategy G G - - -

GREEN project at Berkley G G - - -

Blackfriars and Quayside Regeneration G G - - -

Berkley Green Cyber Security Training and Conference CentreG G - - -

Gloucestershire Airport South East Camp Development ProjectG G - - -

Growth Hub Amalgamated AG AG - - -

Cinderford Northern Qtr Spine Road G G - - -

Gloucester Transport Hub G G - - -

Pre-Committed LGF Elmbridge Roundabout N/A N/A - - -

Abbeymead/Metz Way Corridor Improvements G G - - -

Agri-Tech Innovation Centre (Farm 491) G G - - -

Berkeley Bridges Replacement G G - - -

Cheltenham Spa Railway Improvements AG AG - - -

UK Digital Retail Innovation Centre A A - - -

A40 Over Roundabout & Highnam G G - - -

A419 Corridor Improvements G G - - -

Cinderford New Campus G G - - -

Gloucester SW By-pass widening AG AG - - -

Merrywalks Centre Stroud G G - - -

Hartpury College Tech to Plate Centre G G - - -

Lydney Transport Strategy G G - - -

A40 Innsworth Gateway Roundabout AG AG - - -

Cheltenham Cyber Park AG AG - - -

Gloucestershire Airport Anson Park AG AG - - -

West Cheltenham Walking and Cycling Improvement (WCWCI) (previously named B4063 Staverton Bridge Junction Imp)AG AG - - -

St Barnabas Roundabout Safety Imp N/A N/A - - -

Gloucester Railway Station Improvements AG AG - - -

Residual LGF funds in reallocation process - - - - -

0 - - - - -

- - - - - -

Project RAG Ratings

Deliverables Progress

15-17
Financial Year

Total
Housing

This Quarter

P
age 27



Growth Deal Dashboard

Growth Deal Performance

G

2015-16 2016-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 Total

£13,170,000 £23,079,605 £9,254,854 £8,499,446 £20,482,684 £14,856,992 £89,343,581

LGF Outturn 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21

Actual 8,495,000£               31,054,000£    14,486,859£  9,354,822£      20,282,500£   8,495,000£     83,673,181£               

Forecast for year 15,130,000£             35,453,000£    14,489,529£  9,046,471£      19,932,000£   15,130,000£   94,051,000£               

Progress towards forecast 56% 100% 103% 102% 56% 89%

LGF Expenditure

Actual 867,287£                  19,902,710£    18,214,392£  10,648,282£    8,706,992£     867,287£        58,339,663£               

Forecast for year 31,277,127£             24,301,710£    15,273,362£  14,072,628£    13,487,023£   31,277,127£   98,411,850£               

Progress towards forecast 3% 119% 76% 65% 3% 59%

Non-LGF Expenditure

Actual 10,216,703£             35,499,625£    26,576,131£  32,511,596£    8,233,915£     10,216,703£   113,037,970£             

Forecast for year 19,653,928£             39,655,625£    34,716,000£  27,400,000£    9,369,630£     19,653,928£   130,795,183£             

Progress towards forecast 52% 77% 119% 88% 52% 86%

Total LGF + non-LGF Expenditure

Actual 11,083,990£             55,402,335£    44,790,523£  43,159,878£    16,940,907£   11,083,990£   171,377,633£             

Forecast for year 50,931,055£             63,957,335£    49,989,362£  41,472,628£    22,856,653£   50,931,055£   229,207,033£             

Progress towards forecast 22% +90% +104% +74% +22% 75%

Contractual Commitments  (manual entry)

15-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 Total

Forecast 46,687,000£    2,089,000£    5,797,000£      20,130,000£   14,635,000£   89,338,000£               

Actual 46,687,000£    2,089,000£    5,746,471£      20,207,396£   8,495,000£     83,224,867£               

Variance +0% +0% -1% +0% -42% -7%

Commentary

Section 151 Officer Approved

Name 

Date

Financial Year

This Quarter

Area lead comments

This return establishes the Quarter 1 20-21 Position.  Outturn and Contractual Commitments total this quarter account for £6.895m for Phases 3 and 4 of the  Cheltenham Cyber Park 

Project and £1.6m for the West Cheltenham Walking and Cycling Infrastructure projects which were approved by the LEP Board.

It has been agreed by BEIS and approved by the LEP Board that the remaining £450k of unallocated funding on the LGF will be used to top up the £11.3m Getting Building Fund 

Grant and this will be reported as appropriate on future returns.

This quarter saw the completion of the A419 Corridor Improvements project which provides infrastructure enhancements as well as the Lydney Transport Strategy project providing 

walking and cycling infrastcture in Lydney town centre as a means of helping and promoting modal shift and encouraging greater well-being. 

Due to the ongoing COVID-19 circumstances, reporting on spend this quarter only amounts to £867,287.  The project promoters have reported, however, that activity on projects and 

on construction sites is resuming and are confident in their deliverability projections and are looking at ways of minimising delays to ensure they remain on track for the LGF 

Programme.

The housing forecasts for the year are associated with the A40 Innsworth and Blackfriars and Quayside projects, with significant progress being made on these sites.  The vast 

majority of the total job forecast is from the Growth Hub project, as well as Farm 491 and roles associated with the infrastructure developments at the Cheltenham Cyber Park and the 

A40 Innsworth Gateway projects.  It is expected that performance will be closer to forecast over the next two quarters.

Total

Financial Progress

LGF Award

15-17

P
age 28



Director’s Report, Economy, Environment & Infrastructure
Scrutiny Committee Report

September 2020

This report summarises key areas likely to lead to decisions over the next 6 months, 
including updates on areas previously reported.  

1.0 Decisions

1.1      Relevant forthcoming decisions, by date due:
 The proposed adoption of the ULEV (Ultra Low Emissions Vehicles) Strategy and the 

procurement and installation of Electric Vehicle Chargers across Gloucestershire. 
(Between 7 September 2020 and 21 September 2020)

 GEGJC Covid 19: Gloucestershire Response and Approach to Recovery (28 July 
2020)

 Proposed adoption of the Gloucestershire Local Development Guide 2020 (11 
November 2020)

 Gloucestershire County Council’s partnership agreement with Gloucester City Council, 
Cheltenham Borough Council and Tewkesbury Borough Council in relation to the Joint 
Core Strategy (Between 3 August and 30 September 2020)

1.2 Pending Items not yet published on the Forward Plan:
 ITU Bus Contract Procurement 
 Review of GCC Fleet Management 
 Strategy for the “A Million Trees Challenge” 
 ITU Public Transport real time information system re-procurement 
 ANPR Camera and Maintenance Contract 
 Climate Change Strategy – Annual Report including 5 year rolling action plan

2.0 Highways 

2.1 Budget Announcements
 Local Highways Maintenance Challenge & Pothole Funding has been allocated by 

formula by DfT with a total of £12.7m to be received and allocated across Wye Valley 
Bridges, footways and carriageways.
 

2.2 Emergency Active Travel Schemes
 DfT announcement of £2bn funding for walking/cycling with £250m emergency funds –

we received £321k for tranche 1; a tranche 2 bid for £10.5m has been submitted and 
we are awaiting the outcome of this funding bid before determining which further 
measures are progressed.

 3 ‘trial’ schemes in place and London Road scheme being implemented during August.

2.3 Highways Contracts
 CIHT Collaboration Award won by joint entry from GCC/Atkins/Ringway – the award 

was for “New collaborative contractual arrangements for Gloucestershire Highways”.
 Term maintenance/Professional Services - Resources operating with some limited 

impact from COVID19.  Additional jet patching, pre-surface dressing patching and 

Page 29

Agenda Item 10

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=34751&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=34751&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=33750&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32801&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=32367&Opt=0


footway works all underway.  Performance on cyclical maintenance and defect repair 
remains high.

 Structural maintenance - delivery now concentrated on being brought back on track for 
20/21 after the postponement of some works due to COVID19 impacts.  The website 
shows the current schedule plus the interactive map for 20/21 works.

 Street lighting – delivery is largely business as usual.

2.4 B4063 / A40 Highways England Cycling Scheme – Cheltenham to Gloucester
 Highways England (HE) are currently progressing their major cycle scheme between 

Cheltenham and Gloucester, with GCC as a key partner. This project will need to link 
into the under construction GCC £22M transport improvement scheme to the west of 
Cheltenham. GCC officers have decided to take over the detailed design of this project. 
This will have the key advantage of directly linking the project to the emerging £22M 
West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Scheme. A bid was recently submitted to the 
GFirst LEP for £5M towards this scheme. Despite scoring well, the scheme was not 
shortlisted by the LEP for funding. 

2.5 West Cheltenham / Cyber £22M
 Work has now started on site for phases 1 & 2;
 Business Cases for Phases 3 & 4 were submitted, presented and agreed at the LEP 

Board on 9th June 2020; pre-award meeting has been held and a start on site early in 
2021 is anticipated

 Ongoing issue re-timing / extent of Highways England’s A40 / M5 ‘safety critical’ 
works and delays associated with COVID 19, which will mean the original planned 
completion date will be delayed;

2.6 GSWB / Llanthony Road
 Planning permission granted April 2019;
 Ongoing negotiations with landowners / landlords re- 14 plots; terms have recently 

been agreed with a further 2 objectors and we remain in dialogue with those 
outstanding.

 CPO Public Inquiry date was set for 19th May 2020; after COVID 19 this was intended 
to be held virtually but PINS informed us that they will not now carry this out virtually 
and the Inquiry has therefore been postponed. GCC are awaiting confirmation of a 
date but this is anticipated to be November 2020.  This will affect the scheme’s 
delivery time.

2.7 A419 Junction Improvements (Stonehouse)
 Construction substantially complete and final footway works programmed by end 

August.

2.8 A38 Canal Bridges, Whitminster
 Works ongoing with retaining walls now complete and work concentrated on the 

southern bridge on the roundabout, after which work will switch to the northern bridge.
 On track to complete in November 2020.

Page 30



 Following completion of the roundabout works, further works to connect the canal 
either side will be progressed.

3.0 Community & Infrastructure 

3.1 ITU – Public and School Transport
 Staff implementing new home to school transport plans agreed by directors of EE&I and 

Childrens following latest government guidance on reducing social distancing subject to 
extra protective measures being put in place. These include face masks, only 
transporting children from one school per bus to maintain ‘school bubbles’ and 
additional cleaning.

 Think Travel – Positive feedback from people who have attended adult and family cycle 
skills courses being held at schools. 

 School Streets – following Cabinet on 22nd July an officer working group has been 
established to implement pilots at three schools: Warden Hill Primary (Cheltenham), 
Tewkesbury CofE Primary and Kingsholm Primary (Gloucester). Officers will engage 
with schools and local communities on the best way to manage temporary road closures 
and to develop a package of support measures known as School Travel Plans to 
encourage active travel (walking, cycling and scooting) to school. The 12 month pilots 
will be funded from £100k set aside from the Climate Change and Air Quality fund 
agreed in the 2020/21 budget. 

3.2 Network & Traffic Management and Parking
 In week 19 traffic levels were 11.6% below pre-Covid levels (compared with 68% below 

in week 3). However inter peak flows have returned to pre-Covid levels as people make 
more trips in the middle of the day. Expect to see a significant rise in September as 
schools return.

 Gloucestershire’s bid for a 12 month trial of E-scooters, covering Cheltenham and 
Gloucester, has been submitted to the Department for Transport. A preferred supplier 
has been agreed following a market engagement process. They will fund the trial and 
use geofencing to manage responsible parking and limit the speed of scooters in areas 
such as shopping streets in town and city centres.  Engagement with user groups 
representing people with disabilities will form part of the trial. We are waiting to hear 
back from the DfT and, subject to approval, aim to launch the scheme in September.

 Inflationary increases agreed in the 2020/21 budget were deferred in April and will now 
apply to parking charges from September. Gloucestershire is one of the few councils 
that offers pay per minute tariffs for the first two hours, with a minimum charge of 50p or 
£1 depending on the location. Permit fees for electric and low emission (Band A) 
vehicles have been frozen and Carers permits remain free.

3.3 Highways Development Management
 The Manual for Gloucestershire Streets has been updated and was published on the 

council’s web site in July. This provides developers with greater clarity about 
development requirements including road layouts, materials and technical 
specifications. It also provides clarity on acceptable road designs following the 
government’s review of shared spaces.

Page 31



 Further investment in staff capacity is ongoing and work is underway with Legal 
Services to improve our processes for developer agreements.

4.0 Strategic Infrastructure

4.1  A417 Missing Link
 Preferred Route Announcement (Route 30) made March 2019;
 Further public consultation took place in Autumn 2019;
 A supportive officer-level response to this consultation (a joint response from CDC, 

TBC and GCC) was sent on 8th November 2019;
 Positive announcement in March 2020 stating that the scheme has secured funding 

and should progress to DCO later this year;
 Various issues, including National Trust withdrawing their support for some aspects of 

the scheme, have resulted in a need for the scheme to be redesigned. This may lead to 
a delay of up to 12 months to the scheme’s original timetable. 

4.2 M5 Junction 9 and A46 (Ashchurch)
 The Strategic Outline Business Case for the M5 J9 / A46 scheme was submitted to 

the DfT in January 2020;
 The Outline Business Case is being progressed – the cost of which is likely to be 

£2M-£3M – part of the funding will come from the approved £4M GCC funding for 
‘business case development’ in 2020/21;

 Discussions re- possible future funding ongoing with both Homes England and 
Tewkesbury BC due to the links to the ‘garden town’. 

4.3 M5 J10 / HIF bid
 OBC submitted to MHCLG on 21st March 2019;
 Additional GCC revenue secured to progress this project throughout 2020/21;
 Positive decision made in March 2020 stating that our bid has been successful;
 Urgent work is continuing to progress the scheme, noting concerns re- COVID 19 

and the associated delays to the original planned timescales due to the ‘late’ 
Government announcement;

 The funding shortfall was subject to an approved Cabinet report on 17th June 2020;
 Authority to use CPO powers if necessary approved by Cabinet 22nd July 2020;
 The GDA is close to being signed; 
 As we have been successful with the bid, there will be an opportunity to claim back 

significant elements of the business case development costs already incurred – this 
will be done as part of the first draw down (expected Autumn 2020) and is likely to 
included circa £5.5M of historic costs;

 There is a proposed public consultation on this scheme in October 2020. 

4.4 Improved rail connectivity
 Rail Strategy published March 2020;
 This will now feed into the emerging review of the Local Transport Plan, which has 

recently been subject to a public consultation – the results of which are currently 
being analysed.

Page 32



4.5 Digital connectivity
 Cabinet considered and approved the latest, revised Fastershire Broadband Strategy 

2019-2022 in December 2019;
 This is now being implemented with a view to securing solutions for ‘the final 3%’. 

4.6 Local Transport Plan (LTP)
 Adopted in 2016;
 Currently being reviewed, with a view to adopting the revised Plan in early 2021;
 Draft LTP (pre- public consultation) agreed at 20th December 2019 Cabinet;
 Public consultation took place 16th January – 26th March 2020;
 The results of the public consultation are currently being analysed;
 A Joint GEGSC and ESC Committee meeting will consider the LTP consultation 

responses on 23rd September 2020;
 GCC Cabinet will consider the revised LTP on 16th December 2020. 

4.7 Minerals Local Plan
 The Plan has now been adopted. 

4.8 Chepstow Transport Improvements
 Consultant’s report outlined scheme options;
 Monmouthshire CC keen to progress the Business Case;
 GCC Lead Cabinet Members supported a GCC financial contribution of £20K 

(2020/21) towards Stage 2 of the Chepstow Transport Study.  

4.9 Cinderford 
 FoDDC yet to secure planning permission and funding for the proposed extension of 

phase one of the Northern Quarter road;
 FoDDC aiming to apply to themselves (via a Section 73 amendment) to vary the 

existing planning permission later in 2020;
 Until planning and funding is in place, no further action for GCC. 

5.0 Libraries & Registration

5.1 Libraries
 12 libraries opened their doors to the public by 28th August 2020 alongside continuing 

to offer collection services.  We are working on the changes required in other sites and 
these will continue to open in a phased approach.

 Stonehouse Library – the new library opened to the public on Wednesday 12th August 
2020.  The first days have been well used with extremely positive feedback received.  

 
5.2 Registration 
 We have recently increased appointment availability for birth registrations.  Wedding 

and Civil partnership ceremonies re-commenced on 4th July 2020 and are now 
regularly being conducted.  We are still working with Approved Venues on their risk 
assessments in order that they have a COVID 19 secure certificate.

 Citizenship Ceremonies re-commenced from 26th August 2020.

Page 33



6.0 Waste Management 

 All five of the county’s Household Recycling Centres (HRCs) remain open for pre-
booked visits, with social distancing measures in place on site. The number of 
bookings made available has been increased further. Further work is needed to reduce 
waiting times at Pyke Quarry. From 19th August, opening hours at this site will be 
temporarily increased by opening on Wednesday’s (the normal weekly day closure) in 
order to accommodate more visits.

 All waste treatment facilities including the Gloucestershire EfW, food waste and 
composting sites continue to accept waste as normal.

 Following authorisation from Cabinet in July, the following procurement projects are 
now underway:

o Procurement of a food waste treatment contract to replace the current 
arrangement that ends in Sept 2021. This will also require waste transfer 
arrangements to be put in place for district councils.

o Negotiation and award of a new contract to Ubico (without further 
competition) for the management of HRCs, and the extension of the twenty 
plus contracts the council has in place with off-takers of HRC materials. 

o Extension of the contract in place with EDF energy for the sale of electricity 
generated by the Javelin Park EfW by two years. 

 The new residual waste incentive payments/agreements with district councils have 
taken effect from July 2020. Agreements with districts are being finalised with the 
next quarterly payment due in October. The waste management team have agreed to 
keep tonnages and performance under review this year and consider a one-off 
adjustment if deemed necessary.  

 The first meeting of the new Gloucestershire Resources and Waste Partnership is to 
take place shortly. 

7.0 Employment and Skills 

7.1 Commissioning
 A subcontractor external audit took place 30th June and 1st July 2020 carried out 

remotely by Hurst. The main issue identified is the delay in getting contracts in place 
with providers in academic year 2019-20 which we have addressed already. Minor 
recommendations are also all being actioned.

7.2 Direct Delivery
 Online learning remains in place for community learning, skills and apprenticeship 

provision.
 Main focus remains on plans for reopening of provision and transition to the new 

staffing structure. The reopening plans cover delivery on GCC premises, on 
employers premises, on community partner organisation premises and exams. Staff 
are also currently re-testing operational Covid-19 arrangements at Commercial Road 
premises before reopening in September.. 

 Team supporting the proposed ‘Lift Off’ skills event promoted y Richard Graham MP 
on 11th September at Kingsholm.

Page 34



7.3 Gloucestershire Skills Advisory Board GSAP (formerly GESB)
 The Careers and Enterprise Company (CEC) has confirmed funding via Wave 3 of 

the Careers Hubs for a Gloucestershire Careers Hub managed by GFirst LEP. 
Careers Hub staff will be employed by GFirst LEP but have a county-wide remit and 
will work closely with GCC and Districts on the employment and skills economic 
recovery plans.

 15 major employment and skills initiatives have been announced by DfE DWP and 
private sector partners in July and the Lead Commissioner is currently working with a 
number of local stakeholders to map these out and understand the impacts these will 
have on existing provision as well as the part they will play in local economic 
recovery. These will be included in the GCC local economic recovery plans being 
developed to link with the 6 place-based plans from the Districts and the LEP 
economic recovery plan.

 DfE has just confirmed it’s requirements for the Local Skills Plan to be published by 
GSAP in March 2021. These requirements will be built into the current work on 
employment and skills economic recovery in the county and the county skills 
strategy.

 Next meeting 7th September will focus on COVID 19 employment and skills economic 
recovery including the skills-related ‘asks’ included in the GFirst LEP local economic 
recovery plan and the ‘asks; included in the six District economic recovery plans..

7.4 Apprenticeships
 Currently seeking ways to boost apprenticeship provision and activity given the 

current trend for apprenticeships to cease or be put on hold with several employers 
as staff are laid off or furloughed.

 Demand from local employers, young people and other stakeholders for an 
Apprenticeship Clearing House has increased and will be included in employment 
and skills economic recovery plans in the county.

 GCC has proved very effective and influential in Levy transfer and further work on 
this, including getting more large local employers to undertake Levy transfer to local 
SMEs will also be included in employment and skills economic recovery plans in the 
county.

- REPORT END - 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Economic Growth Scrutiny Scorecard

Quarter 1 2020/21

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page no.
Key to Symbols 2
Economy, Education & Skills 3

Type your text here

1

P
age 37

javascript:app.OpenBookmark(1,896,true,null,null,false,'','');


Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4)

4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3)

3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2)

2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1)

1 2 3 4 5

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than target

Performance worse than target

Performance significantly worse than target

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)

Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols  Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

2

P
age 38



Economy, Education & Skills
Cllr Patrick Molyneux

Economic Development

Amount of Local Growth
Deal funding contracted for
project delivery between
Gloucestershire County
Council as accountable
body and individual
promoters following GFirst
LEPs instructions

Plan is Best
Latest
Quarter

£67,643 £89,198 £79,451 £83,979
Corporate
Data Set

Value of Planning
Agreements signed to
support provision of
Highways &
Education/Libraries (£000)

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date £5,383 £927 £3,266 £0 £456
Corporate
Data Set

% of premises with next
generation broadband
access (NGA) Superfast

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

95.0% 93.9% 94.0% 94.8% 95.4%
Corporate
Data Set

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun19 Qtr Sep19 Qtr Dec19 Qtr Mar20 Qtr Jun20 Comments Qtr Jun20

3

P
age 39

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col9')


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Work Plan
	7 Broadband
	8 GFirst LEP
	Gloucestershire Joint Economic Scrutiny Committee 16 09 20 - Project Pipeline and Getting Building Fund
	Growth Deal Project Summary Q1 20-21 270720
	Growth Deal Progress Dashboard Q1 20-21 270720
	Gloucestershire LGF Data Capture Q1 20-21 LEP Board Summary

	10 Executive DIRECTORS REPORT
	Economic Growth Scrutiny Q1 20.21


